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Oregon Historic Site Form Markham School

10531  Capitol Hwy 

Portland, Multnomah County

 ARCHITECTURAL / PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
(Include expanded description of the building/property, setting, significant landscape features, outbuildings, and alterations)

 HISTORY
(Chronological, descriptive history of the property from its construction through at least the historic period [preferably to the present])

Description Summary

Situated in a residential neighborhood of Southwest Portland, Markham Elementary School is located at 10531 SW Capitol Highway. Built in 1951, 
the Colonial Revival style school building (170A) is situated on a mostly grass-covered ten acre campus which includes a grass-covered commons in 
front of the main entrance. The modified H-shaped building has a wood frame clad with red brick which sits on a poured concrete foundation. The 
single story building is covered by gable roofs. The school building houses classrooms, an auditorium, a gymnasium, a media center/library, a 
cafeteria, and an administrative office.

Architectural Description

Situated in a residential neighborhood of Southwest Portland, Markham Elementary School is located at 10531 SW Capitol Highway. Built in 1951, 
the Colonial Revival style school building is situated on a mostly grass-covered ten acre campus, which includes a grass-covered commons opposite 
the main entrance. Playfields are located at the rear and to the west of the school. An asphalt-covered half-circular driveway is located in front of the 
northeast wing (Cafeteria). Parking areas are situated at the southeast corner of the property off Capitol Way, and another at the rear of the school. 

The school is oriented on an north-south axis with its principal entry facing SW Capitol Highway. The modified H-shaped building sits on a poured 
concrete foundation. The interconnecting low and medium pitched gable roofs are covered with composition shingles. Two passageways covered by 
flat roofs connect the two front (east) wings with the two rear (west) wings.  Brick veneer is the primary siding, with concrete cladding on sections 
of the rear elevations. Fenestration consists of fixed single pane and metal and wood frame symmetrically placed pivot windows. Double-leaf metal 
doors are located at all the building’s entrances.

The entry to the school is beneath a projecting gable roof portico supported by wood columns. The wood frame pediment is supported by eight 
wooden poles. Parallel projecting bays on the north and side of the building create an interior commons. These bays are also distinguished by 
projecting porticoes supported by brick columns. 

The interior layout of the school consists of a modified H-shaped finger plan with four projecting classroom wings. The main north-south hallway 
bisects the two east-west wings/hallways. The shape of the hallway ceilings is either flat, arched, or semi-elliptical. The walls are lined with a variety 
of materials including concrete, brick, and sheetrock. Tubular fluorescent lights are suspended from the acoustic tile ceilings. The floors are covered 
with linoleum. Wood display cases line the hallways.

The auditorium retains many of its original architectural features. A half-circular wood veneer ticket booth is located in the wood paneled entry 
lobby. Interior finishes in the auditorium include wood seats, wainscot, and stage. 

The double height gymnasium is located in the west wing of the building. Illumination is provided by fluorescent light fixtures and wood frame fixed 
pane windows. Seating consists of folding wooden bleachers. The original wood flooring is intact. Adjacent to the main gymnasium is a smaller 
auxiliary gym. The concrete floor and unfinished concrete and brick walls provide a durable play surface. The roof/ceiling is supported by wooden 
horizontal cross beams. 

The classrooms are primarily square in plan. The classroom ceilings are either flat, shed-type, or saltbox shaped. The floors are covered with 
linoleum tile. The rooms feature wood doors, book cases, cabinets, and closets. Other built-in fixtures include sinks and counters. Tubular fluorescent 
light fixtures are suspended from acoustic tile clad ceilings.

Alterations/Integrity

Markham Elementary School has evolved since its original construction in 1951. The original building was H-shaped. In 1965 two additional 
classrooms were added to the southwest. The most significant alteration occurred in 1979 when the auxiliary gymnasium and several classrooms 
were added to the northwest wing. At this time the media center was also remodeled (Markham Facility Plan).

With only minimal alterations, the school retains a high degree of integrity. The 1965 and 1979 additions made little alteration to the exterior 
cladding, roof lines, or fenestration. The projecting bays, porticoes, and cupolas in the Colonial Revival style have been retained. The hallways, 
classrooms, and gymnasium feature their original finishes, built-in cabinets, and configurations. The auditorium and lobby retain their wood paneling, 
seating, and ticket nook.
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Statement of Significance

In response to the residential growth in the southwest neighborhoods of the city, Portland Public Schools acquired the parcel on SW Capitol Highway 
for $15,000 in 1945. Named in honor of Oregon Poet Laureate Edwin Markham, the school was built in 1951 for $694,150 (Snyder 1979: 239, 
Portland Chronology Binder). The school was constructed during a period of modernization and new construction initiated by Portland Public Schools 
(PPS) after World War II. In 1945, the citizens of Portland approved a ballot measure that provided $5,000,000 over five years to construct, 
improve, and rehabilitate its public school buildings (Portland Public Schools 1945: 2). The ballot measure enabled PPS to respond to the explosive 
growth in school-age children that had occurred in the city as a result of the arrival of defense plant workers and their families, as well as the 
deferred maintenance arising from the lack of funds during the depression (Portland Public Schools 1945: 2-3). Beginning with this initial bond 
measure, the PPS embarked on an effort to improve its school facilities through renovations, additions, and new construction of over fifty schools 
between 1945 and 1970. 

For the new building program, PPS schools adopted the call of architects and school planners across the country for new types of schools. Nationally 
known architects including Richard Neutra, the Walter Gropius led Architects Collective, and the Perkins Will architectural firm promoted new school 
types that reflected both evolving educational practices and design philosophies (Ogata 2008: 567-568; Perkins and Cocking 1949: 238-246). 
Emphasizing the need for economy and rapid construction, the designers adopted new materials that were standardized and mass produced 
including steel, plywood, glass block, and aluminum. In many buildings, architects achieved flexibility through the building’s structure by employing 
non load-bearing partition walls and zoned ventilation and heating systems. Folding walls and moveable cabinets provided additional flexibility 
intended to enable teachers to rearrange rooms based on lesson plan and activities (Ogata 2008: 568). 

Markham Elementary School was designed by Sundeleaf Architects of Portland. A native of Portland, Richard Sundeleaf practiced architecture in 
Oregon for nearly 60 years. Sundeleaf attended Sellwood Grade School and Washington High School. He obtained his degree in Architecture from 
the University of Oregon in 1923. Sundeleaf first worked as a drafstman in the office of A.E. Doyle, one of the most prominent architectural firms in 
the city. He then worked for the firm of Sutton & Whitney before establishing his own practice in 1928. Major commissions included buildings in 
Australia, Finland, and Portland for the Jantzen Knitting Mills. His connections with the Jantzen firm resulted in commissions for Mailwell Envelope 
(1931), Oregon Portland Cement (1929), and Woodbury & Co. (1939). One of the few architects in Portland with regular commissions during the 
Great Depression, Sundeleaf also served as the district leader for the Oregon Historic American Buildings Survey team. He is also known for the 
design of the Francis-Hopkins motors shows room (1949) and the Portland Medical Center Building (1955) (Ritz 2002 276-377).

For the design of Markham School, which was originally developed as a Middle School, Sundeleaf employed a variation on the finger plan utilized by 
many schools in the Portland area and throughout the United States. The architect successfully combined the planning principles and interior 
features of mid-twentieth century with characteristic attributes of the Colonial Revival style. The symmetrical bays and projecting porticos associated 
with that style facilitated the development of the centralized public spaces in the north and south wings. This design also created the interior 
courtyard that provided a central area for students awaiting pickup.

Markham Elementary School retains excellent integrity with its floor plan, cladding, fenestration, and many interior finishes intact. The auditorium 
and ticket booth are particularly distinctive for a school of this period. Although designed by Richard Sundeleaf, the architect is better known for his 
industrial buildings. However, the school successfully adapts characteristic features of the Colonial Revival style, including projecting porticos, 
cupolas, and a symmetrical plan to the educational principles of the mid-twentieth century. The school is recommended eligible for the NRHP under 
Criterion A and C.
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East elevation (cafeteria) front entry  
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Markham School  
Exterior Photos 
ENTRIX, 2009



 
 

 
Gymnasium facing northeast  
 

 
Classroom built-ins 
    

Auditorium facing east 
 
 

 
Classroom built-ins 
 

 
North wing corridor facing west 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Markham School  

Interior Photos 
ENTRIX, 2009 



Markham School
10531 SW Capitol Hwy, Portland OR, 97219

Building Periods

1. Original Building (170A), 1951 

2. Addition (170A), 1965

3. Addition (170A), 1979
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Markham School, looking west, 2009

View Site in Google Maps
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Historical Significance 
and Building Integrity

Contrib:  High Significance

Contrib:  Moderate Signif.
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http://maps.google.com/maps?f=q&source=s_q&hl=en&geocode=&q=10531+SW+Capitol+Hwy+97219&ie=UTF8&t=h&z=16





